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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF THE BANK OF TOKYO
MITSUBISHI UF), LIMITED

We have audited the annexed statement of financial position of the Karachi Branch of The Bank of
Tokyo, Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited (incorporated in Japan with limited liability) (“the Branch”) as at
December 31, 2016 and the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash
flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof (here-
in-after referred to as the ‘the financial statements’) for the year then ended and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Branch’s Management to establish and maintain a system of internal control,
and prepare and present the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards and
the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962), and the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based
on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing as applicable in
Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also inciudes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management,
as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and after due verification, which in case of loans and advances
covered more than sixty percent of the total loans and advances of the Branch, we report that:

(a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Branch as required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984),

(b) in our opinion:

(i) the statement of financial position and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of
1952), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984), and are in agreement with the
books of account and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied,

(i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Branch's business; and

(ii} the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were
in accordance with the objects of the Branch and the transactions of the Branch which have
come to our notice have been within the powers of the Branch;

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
statement of financial position, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash
flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information
required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance,
1984 (XLVII of 1984), in the manner so required and give a true and fair view of the state of the
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Branch’s affairs as at December 31, 2016, and its tnue balance of profit, its comprehensive income,
its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

(d) in our opinion Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980), was deducted by the Branch and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under
section 7 of that Ordinance.

Chartered Accountpants
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The Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited - Karachi Branch
(Incorporated in Japan with limited liability)
Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2016
2016 2015
Note {Rupees in ‘000)
- ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 7 3,526,232 4,233,157
Balances with other banks 8 59,615 127,674
Lendings to financial institutions , 9 4,010,103 3,741,212
Investments 10 791,562 -
Advances ‘ 11 1,851,745 2,589,396
Operating fixed assets _ : 12 47,719 | | - 61,442
Deferred tax assets - net : - -
Other assets I3 71,677 70,485
10,358,653 10,823,366
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 15 113,122 6,211
Borrowings : ) 16 - 829,231 1,409,814
Deposits and other accounts ’ 17 T 5,144,438 5,223,318
Sub-ordinated loans - -
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - -
Deferred tax liabilities - net : 18 1,696 4,451
Other liabilities ™ _ 19 241,845 161,719
: 6,330,332 6,805,513
NET ASSETS o 4,028,321 4,017,853
REPRESENTED BY
Head Office capital account _ : 20 3,856,160 3,856,160
Unremitted profit : ' 172,478 161,693
4,028,638 4,017,853
Deficit on revaluation of assets 21 . (317 -
4,028,321 4,017,853
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS R 22
The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an mtegral part of these financial statements.
KAZUTO OHASHI HASEEB SAIED
> ieneral Manager - oo agor
General Manager ' Deputy General Manager



The Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited - Karachi Branch

(Incorporated in Japan with limited liability)
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Mark-up / return / interest earned
Mark-up / return / interest expensed
Net mark-up / interest income

Provision against non-performing loans and advances - net
Provision for diminution in the value of investments
Bad debts written off directly

Net mark-up / interest income after provisions
NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME

Fee, commission and brokerage income

Dividend income

Income from dealing in foreign currencies

Gain / {loss) on sale of securities

Unrealized gain / (loss) on revaluation of investments
classified as held for trading

Other income

Total non mark-up / interest income

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES

Administrative expenses
Other provisions / assets written-off

Other charges

Total non mark-up / interest expenses
Extra ordinary / unusual items
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation - Current
- Prior years
- Deferred

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

r4h

— } KAZUTO OHASH
!Manager

neral Manager

' The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in ‘000)
23 435,908 418,598
24 (349,864) (337,824)
36,044 80,774
86,044 80,774
30,611 36,975
131,855 143,942
25 1,445 4,315
163,911 185,232
249,955 266,006
26 (220,577) (201,907}
27 (15T (1,334)
{221,334) (203,241)
238,621 62,765
- (12,789) (22,932)
(7,494) 3,577
2,537 1,883
28 (17,746) (17,472}
10,875 45,293
ygzsezsswso
¥ Genaral Menager
puty General Manager




The Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited - Karachi Branch

(Incorporated in Japan with limited liability)

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Profit after taxation for the year
Other comprehensive income

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss account in subsequent peribds
Exchange adjustment on account of revatuation of Head Office capital

Actuarial gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan (note 29.8.2)
Deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale securities
Related deferred tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2016 2015
(Rupees "000)
10,878 45,293
- 140,038
(138) 1,126
487) -
218 {394)
4on 732
10,468 186,113

W&m
uty General Manager




The Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited - Karachi Branch

(Incorporated in Japan with limited liability) _ '
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Balance at 1 January 2015

Total comprehensive income for the year :

Profit afier tax for the year ended 31 December 2015

Other comprehensive income

Exchange adjustment on account of revaluation of Head Office capital
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plan

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2015

Total comprehensive income for the year _
Profit after tax for the year ended 31 December 2016
Other comprehensive income '
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2016

Head Office

Unremitted Total
capital profits
account
' (Rupees in "000)
3,716,072 115,668 3,831,740
. 45,293 45,293
140,088 - 140,088
- 732 732
140,088 46,025 186,113
3,856,160 161,693 4,017,853
- 10,875 10,875
- (90)} (90)
- 10,785 10,785
- 172,478 4,028,638

- 3,856,160

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements,

I

. "V KAZUTO OHASHI
& & eral Manager

eneral Manager

puty General Manager
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The Bank of Tokyo - Mitéubishi UFJ , Limited - Karachi Branch

(Incorporated in Japan with limited liability)
Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2016

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation :

Dividend income

Adjustments for

Depreciation

Amortization

Provision for defined benefit plan

Net gain on disposal of operating fixed assets

Decrease / (increase) in operating assets
Lendings to financial institutions
Advances _ _

Others assets (excluding advance taxation)

(Decrease) / increase in operating liabilities
Bills payable

Borrowings

Depesits and other accounts

Other liabilities

Contribution made to defined benefit plan
Income tax paid ,
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments in operating fixed assets

Net investment in Available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities '

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Remittance received form Head Office
Net cash used in financing activities

Effects of exchange adjustment on revaluation of Head Office capital

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

'I‘h;annexednotesfmmlto42formanintegralpanofﬂ1mﬁnmcialstatmﬁems. -

e AZUTO OHASHI

neral Manager General Manager

_ 2016 2015
Note (Rupees in ‘000)

28,621 62,765

28,621 62,765

15,267 15,750

3.901 3,896

1,835 1,895
(1,445) {4,315)

19,558 17,226

48,179 79,991
(268,891) (2,332,798)
737,651 (332,295)

7,538 __ 12,719
476,298 (2,652,374)

106,911 1,650

(580,533) " 809,915

(78,880) 1,952,119

92,892 19,313

(459,660) 2,779,997

(1,882) -
(41,871) (6,435)

21,064 201,179
(5,449 (10,604)

(792,049) -

1,445 4,503
(796,048) (6,101)

- 140,088

(774,984) 335,166

7 4,360,831 4,025,665

29 3,585,847 4,360,831

Q, sz

Deputy General Manager




The Bank of Tokyo - - Mitsubishi UFJ Limited - Karachi Bra.nch

(Incorporated in Japan with limited liability)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016

21

2.2

C 4.1

4.2

STATUS AND NATURE.OF BUSINESS

The Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited is incorporated in Japan with limited liability. Its operations in Pakistan
are carried out through a branch (“the Branch”) located at Shaheen Complex, Karachi in the province of Sindh. It is
engaged in commercial banking business as described in the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962.

The credit rating done by Standard & Poor’s in February 2016 for The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited is A+ for
the long term and A-1 for the short term; Rating done by Moody’s in February 2016 is Al for the long term and P-1 for
the short term (representing depasit rating only) and rating done by Fitch in February 2016 is A for the long term and F1
for the short term.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the banking system to Islamic
modes, the State Bank of Pakistan has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of trade-related
modes of financing includes purchase of goods by banks from their customers and immediate resale to them at
appropriate profit in price on deferred payment basis. The purchase and resale arising under these arrangements are not
reflected in these financial statements as such, but are restricted to the amount of facility actwally utilized and the
appropriate portion of profit thereon. :

These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Branch's functional and presentation
currency.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except invesments and commitments
in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts that have been marked to market and are carried at fair value and
certain staff retirement benefits are stated at present value.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Ordinance,
1984, the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, or directives issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). Wherever, the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, or directives issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the State Bank of Pakistan differ with the requirements of IFRS,

the requirements of the Compames Ordinance, 1984, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, or the requirements of the
said directives prevall

The SBP vide BSD Circular No. 10, dated 26 August 2002 has deferred the applicability of International Accounting

Standard 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (IAS 39) and International Accounting Standard 40,

Investment Property (IAS 40) for Banking companies till further instructions. Further, according to the notification of the

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) dated 28 April 2008, the IFRS - 7 "Financial Instruments:

Disclosures” has not been made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been

considered in the preparation of these financial statements. However, investments have been classified and valued in
rurd&nce with the requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP.
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IFRS 38, 'Operating Segments’ is effective for the Branch's accounting period beginning on or after 01 January 2009. All
banking companies / foreign branches operating in Pakistan are required to prepare their financial statements in line with
the format prescribed under BSD Circular No. 4 dated 17 February 2006, Revised Forms of Annual Financial
Statements', effective from the accounting year ended 31 December 2006, The management of the Branch believes that
as the SBP has defined the segment categorization in the above mentioned circular, the SBP requirements prevail over
the requirements specified in the IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in these financial statements is
based on the requirements laid down by the SBP. '

Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective for the year ended 31
December 2016

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended 31 December 2016. These
standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Branch's operations or are not expected to
have significant impact on the Branch's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

- Amendments to IFRS $ ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’: Clarification regarding
changes in the method of disposal of an asset.

- Amendments to [IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and
IAS 28 (Revised 2011) - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Application of consolidation exception

- Amendments to IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements: Accounting for scquisitions of an interest in a joint operation

- Amendments to [AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements: Amendments resulting from the disclosure initiative

- Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equigment and IAS 41 - Agriculture: Bringing bearer plants in scope of
IAS 16.

- Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 - Intangible Assets; Clarification on acceptable
methods of depreciation and amortisation,

- Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’: Clanﬁcatlonthatﬂle same currency bonds be used to determine the
discount rate in which benefits are to be paid.

- Amendments to IAS 27 (Revised 2011) ‘Scparate Financial Statements’: Use of equity method to account for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and assocmtes in separste financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting’: Clarification related to certain disclosures, i.e., if they are not
included in the notes to interim financial statements and disclosed elsewhere should be cross referred.

New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after
the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to
the Branch's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Branch's financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.

: - Effective from accounting
Standards / amendments , _ period beginning on or after
- Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment’; Clarification of the classification January 01, 2018 .
and measurement of share-based payment transactions
- Amendments to [AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows": Amendments as result of the - January 01, 2017

disclosure initiative
Up



Effective from accounting

- Standards / amendments period beginning on or after
- Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes": Recognition of deferred tax assets for _January 01, 2017
unrealised losses
- IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration': Provides January 01,2018

guidance on transactions where consideration against non-monetary prepaid asset
{ deferred income is denominated in foreign currency,

Other than the aforesaid standards and amendments, the Infernational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also
issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan:

- IFRS I - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

- IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts

- IFRS 15— Revenue from Contracts with Customers

- IFRS 16 — Leases

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise judgment in application of its accounting policies. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates, The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
ﬂlecsnmatelsrcwsodiftheremmnaﬂ‘ectsonlyﬂ:atpmod, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Branch's financial statements or where
judgment was exercised in apphcatmn of accounting policies are as follows:
Provision against nou—performlng loans and advances

The Branch reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of non-performing loans and advances and provision required
there against on a quarterly basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the

- account, financial position of the borrower, the forced sale 'value of the securities and the requirement of the Prudential

Regulations are considered.

Operating fixed assets, depreciation and amortization
The Branch carries its properties and equipment / intangibles at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization and

* accumulated impairment losses, if any. In making estimates of the depreciation / amortization, management uses the

method which reflects the pattern in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Branch. The residual
values and the method applied is reviewed at each financial year end and if there is a change in the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the assets, the method would be changed to reflect the change
in pattern. Such change is accounted for as change in accounting estimates in accordance with International Accounting
Standard - 8, "Accounting Pohcles, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors",

Ineome taxes

In making the estimate for income tax currently payable by the Branch, management considers the current income tax
laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provision for deferred tax,
estimate of the Branch's future taxable profit and expected reversal of deductible temporary differences are taken into
account.

/ot



6.1

6.2

The Seventh Schedule of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 governs taxation of banks in Pakistan, Head office administrative
expenses are allowed on the basis that these expenses are determined as per Seventh Schedule of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 and charged in books of accounts of the Branch and a certificate from external auditors has been
received to the effect that the claim of such expenses has been made in accordance with the provision of Rule 4 of
Seventh Schedule of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and is reasonable in relation to operations of the Branch.

Defined benefit plan

Liability is determined on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The actuarial
assumptionsusedtodewmineﬂ:eﬁahﬂityandmmdexpmsemdisclosodmnoun.Aauaﬁalasmpﬁmare
entity's best estimates of the variables that will determine the ultimate cost of providing post employment benefits.
Changes in these assumptions in future years may effect the liability / asset under these plans in those years.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those applied in the
preparation of the financial statements of the Branch fot the year ended 31 December 2015.

Sale and repurchase agrecments

TheBranchentersintopmchasel(sale)ofseaﬁ-iﬁesunderagreememstoreselll(repurchase)secmitimatacertaindate

" in the future at a fixed price. Securities sold subject to a repurchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial

statements as investments and the counter party liability is included in borrowings. Securities purchased under
agreements to resell (reverse repo) are not recognized in the financial statements as investments and the amount extended
to the counter party is included in lendings to financial institutions, The receivables are shown as collatcralized by the
underlying security.

The difference between the purchase / (sale) and resale / (repurchase) consideraﬁonisrecognizhdonaﬁme proportion
basis over the period of the transaction and is included in mark-up / return / interest earned or expensed.

Investments
The Branch classifies its investment portfolio into the following categories:
Held for trading

These investments are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in prices or are part of a
portfolio for which there is an evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking.

Thesearemeasmed_atmhseqlwntrepo:ﬁngdatesatfairvalue.Neigainorlossonremeasmementis included in the
profit and foss account for the year.

Held to maturity

~These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturitics that the Branch has the positive intent

and ability to hold upto maturities. -

These are measured at amortized cost using effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any to reflect
recoverable amount.

Avgilable for sale

These are investments which do not fall under held for trading or held to maturity categories.

A?/‘rfr



6.3

6.4

6.5

Quoted securities classified as available for sale investments are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value.
Any surplus / deficit arising thereon is taken directly to ‘surphus/deficit on revaluation of securities' in the Statement of
Financial Position below equity. The surplus / deficit arising on these securities is taken to the profit and loss account for
the year when actually realized upon disposal.

Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value. Break-up value of equity securities is
calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available audited financial statements.
Investments in other unquoted securities are valued at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Gain or loss on sale of investments is included in profit and loss account for the year.

Investments are recognized on u'ade-date basis and are initially measured at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction cost except for investments classified as held for trading. In case of held for trading investments, transaction
costs are expensed in the profit and loss account for the year.

Advances

Advances are stated net of provision for non-performing loans and advances. The provision for non-performing loans
and advances is made in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of
Pakistan, Advances are written-off when they are considered irrecoverable.

Operating fixed assets

Properties and equipment

Properties and equipment other than capital work in progress are stated at cost less accumulated deprec:anon and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work in progress is stated at cost.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives while
taking into account any residual values, at the rates given in Note 12.1 to the financial statements. In respect of additions
and deletions to properties and equipment, full month's deprecnatlon is charged on additions and no depreciation is
charged in month of disposal.

Residual values, usefu lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if required, at cach reporting period.
Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major repairs and
improvements are capitalized.

Gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets is taken to profit and loss account for the year,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

‘Amortization is charged on straight-line method, by taking into consideration the estimated useful lives of intangible

assets, at the rates given in note 12.3 to the financial statements. These are amortized on prorata basis i i.e. full month's
amortization is charged on additions and no amortization is charged in the monﬂ: of disposal.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Branch reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. Recoverable ,
amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss account
for the year. .

[t



6.6

6.7

WhereMpahmmtlmﬂwwqumdymmccmymgm&memismmawdmmemmmle-
amount but limited to the extent of the amount which would have been determined had there been no impairment,
Reversal of impairment loss is recognized as income. :

Taxation

Inoometaxcomprismofem'rentandde&mdtai. Incometaxisreéogniwd in the profit and loss account, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing laws
of taxation on income eamed. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to

apply to the profits for the year at enacted rates. The charge for the current year also includes adjustments, where
considered necessary relating to prior years, arising from assessments finalized during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all material temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax base. Deferred tax is recognized
based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities using the tax
rates enacted at the reporting date, expected to be applicable at the time of realization or settlement,

Deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against
whlchtheassetlsunlmed.Defetrcdtaxassetsaretevnewedateachreportmgdatcandarereducedtotheextentﬂmtnm
no longer probabledmnhe related tax benefits will be realized.

Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Branch operates an approved funded gratuity scheme, administered by the board of trustees for all its permanent
employees who have completed 5 years of service . Provision is made in accordance with the actuarial recommendations.
Actuarial valuation is carried out periodically using *Projected Unit Credit Method".

The above benefits are payable to staff at the time of sepmuon / retirement from the Branch's services subject to the
completion of qualifying period of service.

Actuaﬂal gah:.i and losses

All actuarial gains and losses are recogmzed immediately through other comprehensive income in order for the net
gratuity asset or liability recognized in the statement of financial position to reflect the full value of plan deficit or
surpius.

Past service cost
All past service costs are recognized in pmﬁt or loss immediately as they occur.
Defined contribution plan |

The Branch also operates a recogmzed provident fund scheme, administered by the board of trustees, for all its
permanent employees to which equal monthly contributions are made by both the Branch and the employees at the rate
of 12.5% of the basic salary.



6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

613

Employees’ compensated absm

Employees’ entitlement to annual leaves is recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision i§ made for estimated
liability for annual leaves as a result of service rendered by the employee against un-availed leaves upto the reporting

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Branch has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Revenue recognition

Mark-up / return on advances and investments is recognized on time proportion basis using effective interest method
except mark-up / interest on non-performing advances which is recognized on receipt basis, in accordance with
PmdentialRegulationsissuedhyﬁeStateBankofPakism

Fee,commxsslononleﬂmofmdttandguamn%andbmkcmgemcomelsrecogmzedonaccmalbaslsandlorwhen
the services are rendered, as the case may be.

Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive dividend is established.
Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the date-of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates
prevailing at the reporting date. )

Forward foreign exchange contracts, other than those relating to foreign currency deposits, are valued at the rates
applicable to their respective maturities. Exchange gain or loss is included in profit and loss account for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of:

- Cash and balances with treasury banks
- Balances with other banks

Off setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set-off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off and the Branch intends either to settle on 2 net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultanecusly.

Financial instruments

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Branch becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual right to the cash flow from the
financial assets expires or is transferred. Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are extinguished ie. when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any loss on derecognition of the financial assets
and financial liabifities is taken to profit and loss account directly. Financial assets carried on the Statemment of Financial
Position include cash and bank balances, lendings to financial institutions, advances and certain receivables; and
financial liabilities include bills payable, borrowings, deposits and other payables. The particular recognition methods
adopted for sipnificant financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the individual policy statements

2 associated with these assets and liabilities.
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6.15

6.16

6.17

ok

Derivative financial instruments are recognized at their fair value on the date at which a derivative contract is entered
into. These instruments are marked to market and changes in fair values are taken to the profit and loss account for the
year. '

Acceptances and other contingent liabilities

Acceptances comprise undertakings by the Branch to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Branch expects
most acceptances to be simultaneously settled with the reimbursement from customers. Acceptances are accounted for as
off-balance sheet transactions and are disclosed as contingent liabilities and commitments. Other contingencies are
recognized and disclosed unless the probability of an outflow of resources embodying benefits are remote.

Borrowings / deposits and their cost

a). Borrowings / deposits are recorded at the proceeds received.
b) Borrowings / deposits cost are recognized as expense in the period in which these are incurred.

Head Office administrative expenses

The administrative expenses allocated by the Head Office are charged to the profit and loss account.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of an entity that engages in business activities, from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to
makes decision about resources to be allocated to the segment and assesses its performance and for which discrete
financial information is available. Segment information is presented as per the guidance of SBP.

Business segments

Trading and sales

It includes fixed income, foreign exchange transactions, fundings, own position securities, lendings and borrowings.
Retail banking |

It includes deposits and banking services.

Commercial banking

Commercial banking includes export finance, trade finance, short term and long term lendings, bills discdunting, letters
of credit, acceptances and guarantees.

Payments and settlements
It includes payments and collections, funds transfer, clearings and settlements.
Geographical segment

These financial statements represent'operations of Karachi Branch oniy and all assets and liabilities represent
transactions entered by the Karachi Branch.
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7.2
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8.1

21

9.2

Mrd

2016 2015

i _ Note (Rupees in '000)
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
In hand
Loéai currency - . : 9,663 4,556
Foreign currencies " 10,000 6,276
With State Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current account 7.1 368,644 301,973
Foreign currency current account 7.2 12,378 14,664
Foreign carrency deposit accounts 7.3 58,575 . 49,528
Head Office capital account 20 3,066,972 3,856,160
3,526,232 4,233,157

This represents current account maintained with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) under the reqmrements of section 22
(Cash Reserve Requirement - CRR) of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962.

As per BSD Circular No. 14 dated 21 June 2008, cash reserve of 5% in USD is required to be maintained with the SBP
on deposits held under the New Foreign Currency Accounts Scheme (FE-25 deposits).

This represents Special Cash Reserve of 15% maintained with SBP in US dollars under the requirement of BSD Circular
No. 14 dated 21 June 2008 and US Dollar settlement account maintained with SBP to facilitate USD clearing. Profit

rates on these deposits are fixed by SBP on a monthly basis. The SBP has not remunerated these deposit accounts during
the year.

2016 2015

Note {(Rupees in '000)
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS :
Outside Pakistan _ ' :
In deposit accounts 81 59,615 127,674

These represent balances with branches of the Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited outside Pakistan. These carry
markup at the rate of 0.16% to 1.25% (2015: 0.08% to 1.25% ) per annum.

_ 2016 2015
Note (Rupees in "000)
LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Cail money lending _ 9.1 500,000 700,000
Repurchase agreement lendings 92494 3,510,103 3,041,212
' 4,010,103 3,741,212

Thmearrymatk-@mmrangmgﬁ'omSGS%msm%(ZOlS 6% to 6.5%) per annuin having maturity latest by June
5,2017. .

These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 5.45% to 5.75% (2015: 5.5% to 6.5%) per annum having matunty per:od of
upto six months (2015: snx months).



9.3

2.4

Particulars of lendings

In local currency:
In foreign currencies

Securities held as collateral against lendings to financial institutions

2016 2015
{Rupees in "000)

4,010,103 3,741,212

4,010,103 3,741,212

2016 2015
Heldby  Further Total Heid by Further Total
Branch given as Branch given as '
collatersl collateral
(Rupees in '000)
Market Treasury Bills 3,586,000 . 3,586,000 3,041,212 . 3,041,212

9.4.1 Market value of securities held as collateral against lendings to financial institutions amounted to Rs. 3,521.69 million (2015:

10.

Rs. 3,054.75 million),

2016 2015
Held by Givenas Held by Given as
Bank collateral Total Bank collateral Total
 Note (Rupees in "'000)
 INVESTMENTS
10.1 Investments by types:
Available-for-sale securities - :
Market treasury bills 102F 1920491 - H m09]] - i -1 -
792,049 - 792,049 - - : -
Investments st cost 792,049 . 792,049 - . -
Deficit on revaluation of
available-for-sale securities  10.4 ' _(487) - {487) - - - -
Total investments at Market Valae 791,562 - 791,562 - - -
: F——- ———
2016 20158
: Note ——— (Rupees in '000) ——
10.2 Invesiments by segments: '
Federal Government Securities:
- Market Treasury Bills C 10.2.1 792,049 : -
Total investments at cost 792,049 -
Deficit on revaluation of
available-for-sale securities (437) -
Total investments at Market Value 791,562 -
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102.1 Market Treasury Bills are held with SBP and are eligible for rediscounting. Market Treasury Bills camry
effective yield ranging from 5.94% to 5.99% per annum (2015: nil) and will mature within 3 months,

10.3 Quality of available-for-sale securities

Ratings Market value / Carrying value of
investments
December 31, December 31, December 31,  December 31,
Note 2016 - 2015 2016 . 2015
Market Treasury Bills  10.3.7 Unrated 791,562 -
10.3.1  These are guaranteed by Government of Pakistan guaranteed securities,
December 31, December 31,
2016 2015
104 Unrealized loss on revaluation of available-for-sale securities
Federal Government Securities
Market Trezsury Bills (487) -
2016 2015
Note (Rupees in '000)
ADVANCES
Loans, cash credits, running finances, etc.
In Pakistan 1,851,745 2,589,396
Outside Pakistan - -
1,851,745 2,589,396
Net investment in finance lease *
In Pakistan - -
Outside Pakistan - -
Bills discounted and purchased (éxcluding treasury bills)
Payable in Pakistan - -
Payable outside Pakistan - -
Advances - gross : - 1,851,745 2,589,396
Pravision for non-performing advances 112 - -
Advances - net of provision 1,851,745 2,589,396




11.1 Particulars of advances (Gross).

11.1.1  In local currency
In foreign currencies

11.1.2  Short term (for upto one year)
Long term (for over one year)

11.2 Since there is no non-performing loan., no provision is required.

2016 2015
(Rupees in '000)
1,851,745 2,589,396
1,851,745 2,589,396
1,552,633 2,310,836
299,112 278,560
1,851,745 2,589,396

11.3 Particulars of loans and advances to General Manager, executives or officers, etc.

Debts due from General Manager, executives or officers of the Branch or anyone of them either severally or jointly with

any other person as per the terms of their employment.

Balance at 01 January
Loans granted during the year
Repayments during the year

Balance at 31 December

12.  OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

. Properties and equipment

Intangible assets
7

2016 2015

Note - (Rupees in '000)

16,339 8,397

5136 12,535

(4,166) (4,593)

17,309 16,339
12.1 40,086 49,908
12.3 7,633 11,534

47,719 61,442




12.1 Properties and equipment

Alterations in _a-ua_.c_._ premises
. w&!—uu. ot leasehold premises

Furniture and fixtures

Computer o.__._!uou.

Electrical equipment

Vehicles

Alterations in leasehold premises
Building on leasehold premises
Fumitore and fixtures
Computer equipment

Electrical equipment

Vehicles

* These amounts represent adjustments made to reconcile ausn assets register with the generel ledger of the Branch.

A

2016

Cost Accamuluted depreciation Carrying Rate of
Asat Additions / As at Asat Charge for Asat valneasat - depreciation
1 January (disposals) 31 December 1 January theyear/ 31 December 31 December
016 2016 2016 (on disposal} 2016 2016
(Rupees in '000) %
45,832 45,832 37,230 1,458 38,688 TA44 10
819 819 819 819 5
11,334 C. 10,667 6,284 689 6,306 4,361 10
| (667) (667) -
34940 3,759 38,700 28,726 2,520 31,346 7354 20
31,448 1,688 31418 20272 3622 22,179 9,239 20
1,715} 1713 -
37,788 36,434 18,983 6,877 24,446 11,988 20
(1,354) ) (1L,354) N : ,
162,162 5444 = 163,870 112,254 18,266 123,784 | 40,086
{3,736) . . (3,736)
_ 2015
Cost Accumulated depreciation Carrying Rate of
As at Additions / Asat AS at Charge for Asat valucasat  depreciation
1January  (disposals)  Adjustments® 31 December 1 January the year/ Adjustments* 3@ December 31 December .
- 2015 2015 2015 {on disposal) 2015 2015 %
(Rupees in ‘000)
43,662 308 (3,135) 45,832 35,763 1,483 (16) 37,230 8,602 10
819 819 819 - 819 - 5
11,015 319 11,334 . 5493 700 91 6,284 5,050 10
38,884 2 ch. (4,419) 34941 28,460 3,001 (1,032) 28,726 6215 20
(1,704} (1,703) .
24,146 2623 7,508 31,448 18,680 3482 752 20,272 11,176 20
(2.329) (2,642) , .
38,321 5195 ) 37,788 17,223 7,084 2mn 18,923 18,865 20
(5,656) : (5,656)
161,847 10,303 201 162,162 106,438 15,750 - 67 112,254 * 49,908
(10,189 ' (10,001) :



122  Disposals of fixed assets during the year

Accumulated  Carrylng

Cost depreeiation valve Sale proceeds Mode of disposal _-n;_.an—-.u of Buyers
Electrical equipment
Generator 1,142 1,142 - 270 Cuotations M/s. Adnan disposal centre
Yehicle 1,354 1,354 - 1,108 Quotations : Nomari Abrar
Miscellaneous items 1,240 1240 - | 67 Quotstions ~ ~ Mss. Adnan disposal centre
Ttems having book value of less : .
than Ry. 250,000 or cost of
less than Rs. 1,000,000 :
Total . 3,736 3,736 - 1,445
123  Intangible assets . . _ . .
. . Cost Amortization Carrying Rate of
Asat Additions Asat As at Charge for Asat ' valueasat  amortization
. 1 Japuary 31 December 1 Jamuary the year 31 December 31 December .
{Rupees In .35.. %
Computer softwares 2016 25289 - 25289 13,758 3901 17,656 7,633 20
Computer softwares 2015 24,988 301 25289 9,859 3,896 13,755 11,534 20

it



124 The&kvﬂmofbuﬂdhginﬂquipmaﬁmp«ﬁemngmwﬁmammnammﬂlymﬁmmmecmymg
amounts except for the building on leasehold premises in PECHS whose valueaspermanagement’sﬁumazelsRs 90
million as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Rs. 100 million).

2,016 2015
_ (Rupees in '000)
12.5 The costs of fully depreciated and amortized
assets that are still in use are as follows:
Alteration in leasehold premises ‘ 31,249 31,249
Building on leaschold premises ' ' 819 819
‘Furniture and fixture ' 3,781 4,444
Computer equipment 22,754 22,303
Electrical equipment o 12,869 13,714
Vehicles ' B 4,845 3,148
Intangible assets - computer softwares 8,173 5,783
' 2 84,490 81,460
13. OTHER ASSETS
Income / mark-up accrued in local currency | 47,199 52,893
Income / mark-up accrued in foreign currency - -
Advance taxation (payments less provision) 8,730 -
Advances, deposits and prepayments : _ 13,753 - 15,282
Unrealized gain on forward foreign exchange contracts - 184
Stationery and stamps in hand 1,772 462
Others 223 1,664
71,677 70,485
14, CONTINGENT ASSETS
- There were no contingent assets of the Branch as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
15. . BILLSPAYABLE
In Pakistan | 113,122 6211
16. BORROWINGS
In Pakistan . o | - .
Outside Pakistan ' : 829,231 1,409,814

829,231 1,409,814

16.1  Particulars of borrowings with respect to currencies

Ir: local currency : _ - -
In foreign currency - : . ) 829,231 1,409,814

A . | | | 829231 1,409,814




2016 - 2015
, Note {Rupees in '000)
6.2  Details of borrowings secured /unsecured
Sachred
Repurchase agreement borrowings _ - -
Export refinance scheme - -
Unsecured _
Call borrowings ' . -
Overdrawn nostro account 67,022 -
Inter office borrowings 16.2.1 762,209 1,400,814
829,231 1,409,814
829,231 1,409,814

16.2.1 These borrowings are subject to mark-up at the rates ranging from 1.04% to 1.34% per annum having maturity upto six
months (2015: 0.47% to 0.81% per annum having maturity upto six months).

- 2,016 2015
(Rupees in '000)
i7. DEFPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
Customers
Fixed deposits ' 3921100 4,388,800
Savings deposits : : - 212,616 243,360
Current accounts - remunerative 573,839 193,303
Current accounts - non-remunerative 431,981 384,596
' ' 5,139,536 5,210,059
Financial Institutions _ '
Remunerative deposits - -
Non-remunerative deposits . 4,902 13,259
4,902 13,259

5,144,438 5,223,318

17.1 - Particulars of deposits

In local currency 4,976,776 5,028,796
In foreign currencies ) _ 167,662 194,522
' ' 5,144,438 5,223,318

18.  DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - NET

Taxable tempanu;v differences on . : o
Accelerated tax depreciation : 2,883 5,420
Deficit on revaluation of Available - for - sale investments 170) _ -
Deductible temporary differences on ' -
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan _ : {1,017) (969)
| 1,696 4,451
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (Habilitles ' o
Opening balance : 4,451 5,940
Recognised in profit and loss account . : (2,537 (1,883)
Recognised on Other Comprehensive Income (218) 394
Closing balance _ . o ' 1,696 4,451

Y4



19.

19.1

20.

20.1

20.2

21
21.1

2.1

2016 2015
Note (Rupees in '000)

OTHER LIABILITIES
Mark-up / retum / interest payable in local currency ' 36,301 29,164
Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currency 1,911 1,115
Unecartied commission on guarantees 9,897 8,490
Accrued expenses 9,568 8,247
Unremitted head office expenses 112,662 85,462
Cutrent taxation (provision less payments) - 12,856
Payabie to defined benefit plan 314 2,211 2,120
Unrezalized loss on forward foreign exchange contracts 8,406 -
Provision against collateral 3,632 3,632
Provision for employees' compensated absences 4,440 3,920
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 3,285 4,136
Others _ 19.1 49,533 2,577

: 241,845 161,719
This includes advance of Rs.49.5 million received against diposal of a propesty.
HEAD OFFICE CAPITAL ACCOUNT
Capital held as:
Interest free deposit in approved focal currency with the State Bank of Pakistan
Remitted from Head Office (Japanese Yen 4,419,160,968) ' 3,066,972 1,704,515
Revaluation surplus allowed by the State Bank of Pakistan - cumulative - 2,151,645
Deposit of un-encumbered approved securities _ 202 789,158 -

3,856,160 3,856,160

In prior year, the branch on instruction of SBP, converted the capital amount of JPY 4419.16 million into PKR 3,856.16
million and deposited the same in Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) Account maintained with SBP in accordance with
Section 13 of the Banking Companies Ordinance , 1962

This represents Market Treasury Bills having face value of Rs. 300 mllllon (2015: Nil). The market value of Market Treasury

Bills as at December 31 , 2016 amounts to Rs. 791.56 million and these have maturities of up to March 2017 (2015: Nil)

_ 2016 2015
DEFICIT ON REVALUATION O_F ASSETS ) ) {Rupees in '000)
Deficit on revalustion of available-for-sale securities .
Market Treasury Bills _ ' {487) _ -
Related deferred tax liability ’ 170 )

{317) -

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Transaction - related contingent liabilities

Includes performance bonds, bid bonds, warranties, advance payment guarantees, shipping guaranteﬁ and sumdby letters of
credit related to particular trmsacuons lssued in favour of

2016 2015
(Rupecs in "000)
Govemment o , 4,539,593 1,647,409
Others : : 261,970 129,495

04(,4 . | 4,801,563 1,776,904
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223

224

2258

22.6

22.6.1

22.6.2

2016 - 2015
(Rupeés in '000)

Trade-related contingent liabilities
Letters of credit . 124,814 168,404
Acceptances 324,377 235,429
Other contingencies
Claims agninst the Branch not acknowledged as debt 92,172 9,366
Commitments to extend credit

'I‘heanchmakeécomminnentstoedecreditinﬁwnmmal com‘seofitsbusincss but these are revocable
commitments and do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn.

2016 2015
, (Rupees in "000)
Commitments in respect of forward exchange contracts
Purchase 945,821 1,433,296
Sale : . 71,574 -

The Branch utilizes foreign exchange instruments as a part of its assets and liabilities management activity to hedge iis
own exposure in currency risk. The maturities of above contracts are spread over a period up to six months (2015: six
months). ' '

Tax related contingencies _
Income tax assessments of the Branch (except for the tax years mentioned in paragraphs below) have been finalized up

to and including the tax year 2008, while the returns for the tax years 2010 to 2015 have been filed which are deemed to
have been assessed under Section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (unless selected for audit).

In respect of tax years 2004 and 2009, orders for amendment of return were received disaflowing of Rs. 2.62 million

against which appeals had been filed by the Branch before the Commissioner - Appeals who have deleted certain
disallowances against which the tax department has filed appeal with Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)

* whereas certain disallowances were upheld against which the Branch hag filed appeal with ATIR. Based on the opinion

22.6.3

of tax advisors of the Branch, the management is confident that the decision in above stated appeals would be in favour
of the Branch and as such no provision is required to be made in these financial statements. :

The Branch has filed Reference Application for the assessment year 2002-2003 against additions under Section 24(1) of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) in the Sindh High Cowrt (SHC). The Income tax Appellate Tribunal
has also referred the References for the assessment years 2010-01 and 2001-02 on addition under section 24(1) of the
Ordinance and Departmental References for the assessment years 1992-93 and 1998-99 respectively on account of
certain disallowances to the SHC. These involve tax demand of Rs 6.13 million. The management believes that the
matters will ultimately be decided in favour of the Branch. Accordingly, no provision is required to be made in these
financial statements, '



24.

25,

26.

26.1
26.2

A

2016 2015 .
_ . Note (Rupees in "000)

MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED
On loans and advances to
- Customers . 163,090 190,174
- Financial institution : : 8,779 1,397
On deposits with treasury banks and financial institutions 430 146
On securities purchased under resale agreements _ 220,978 192,385
On call money lendings - 39,769 34,496
On Investment in Available - for -sale securities . 2,861

435,908 418,598
MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED
Deposits ' 280,753 287,263
Exchange cost on funding ammgements 56,822 46,249
Call borrowings , : - 6
Inter office borrowings : 12,289 T 4,201
Securities sold under repurchase agreements : - 105

349,864 337,824
OTHER INCOME
Net profit on disposal of aperating fixed assets 1,445 4,315
: 1,445 4315
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, allowances, etc. 79,523 84,424
Charge for defined benefit plan ' " 3181 1,835 1,895
Contribution to defined contribution pian - 2,192 2,538
Contribution to Employee Old Age Benefit Scheme 196 202
Provision for employees' compensuted absences ' 549 922
Head office expenses 26.1 53,662 37,250
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc. . 37,459 30,136
Legal and professional : : 594 495
Communications : 2,402 2,585
Repairs and maintenance -- _ 5258 5,889
Stationery and printing ' 2071 1,533
Advertisement and publicity 355 329
Donations 26.2 538 1397
Auditors’ remuneration ' 26.3 L7985 1,730
Depreciation _ : 12.1 15,267 15,750
Amortization of intangible assets 12.3 - 3,901 3,896
Travelling and entertainment ' ' 5,759 - 5,458
Brokerage and commission ; ' o 2,104 1,541
Entertainment : _ ' ' 410 125
Others . 4,707 4,812

220,577 201,907

This include Rs. 10.66 million in respect of finaricial year 2015.

None of the executives and thelr spouses had any interest in donation made during the year. Donations have been made to
the following donees: '



Donations individually equal to or exceeding Rs. 0.1 million
Dar ul Sukun

SO8 Children's Village

Karachi Japanese School

Donations individually less than Rs. 0.1 million

26.3 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee -
Fee for interim review and other certifications
Out-of-pocket expenses

27. OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan
Workers' Welfare Fund

28. TAXATION
For the year

Current
Deferred

For prior year
Current
Defetred

28.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Profit before taxation

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 35 percent
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determmmg taxable income
Tax effect of prior year adjustments

Tax charge for the year

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

-

Note

7

2016 2015
{(Rupees in '000)
450 -
88 -
- 100
538 100
- 297
538 397
625 575
1,070 1,060
100 95
1,795 1,730
757 1,334
757 1,334
12,789 22,932
2,537) (1,883)
10,252 21,049
7,494 (3,577)
7494 (3,577
17,746 17,472
28,621 62,765
10,017 21,968
235 (919)
7,494 (3,577)
17,746 17,472
3,526,232 4,233,157
59,615 127,674
3,585,847 4,360,831




30,

30.1

31
311

31.2

L3

31.4

5

‘ _ 2016 2015
STAFF STRENGTH C ' : Note (Number)
Permanent 36 41
On contractual basis 5 2
Branch's own staff strength at end of the year 41 43
Outsourced - 30.1 11 12
Total staff strength ' 52 55

Outsourced represents employees hired by an outside contractor / agency and posted in the Branch toperfonnvarious
tasks / activities of the Branch,

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
General description

'I'heanchoperat&sanapprovedgramityﬁmdschaneforaﬂitspermanentemployees,whichisadministeredbyﬂle
Trustees. The Branch's costs and contributions are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out at each year end by
using Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are payable to employees on cessation of employment on the following
grounds: : . )

- retirement upon attainment of the normal retirement age (58 years).

- his/ her death in service of the Employer.

- on voluntary retirement before normal retirement age.

- termination of his / her scrvice by the Employer other than for misconduct, negligence, or incompetence.

Number of Employees under the schemes .
2016 2015
_ _ Numbers
Total staff strength ' 41 41

Principal actuarial assumptions

The actuarial valuation is carried out periodically. The latest acmanal valuation was carried out on 31 December 2016
based on the Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following significant assumptions:

2016 C 2015
Discount rate . per annum 8.00% 9.00%
Expected return on plan assets : _ per anpum 3.00% 9.00%
Future salary increase rate per annum 8.00% 8.50%
' 2016 2015
(Rupees in '000)
The amount recognized in the statement of financial position
Present value of defined benefit obligation - 18,101 15,613
Fair value of plan assets _ (15,890) (13,493)
Net fisbility ' ' o 2,211 2,120
Movement in net liability recognized in the statement of financial position
At January 01 ' 2,120 1,351
Charge for the year _ - 1,835 © 1,895
Contribution to the fund made during the year (1,882) -
Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in other comprehensive income 138 {1,126)

WM December 31 ' 221 2,120
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1.7

k)
31.8.1

31.3.2

31.9

31.10

3L

P

Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation 7

Present value of obligation at 01 January
Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gain) / loss

Present value of obligation at 31 December

Reconciliation of fair values of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at 01 January
Expected return on plan assets
Contribution received during the year
Benefits paid '
Actuarial (loss) / gain

Fair value of plan assets at 31 December

Defined benefit cost for the year

Cost recognized in profit and loss account

Current service cost

_Net interest cost

Actuarial loss recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation
Actuarial loss / (gain) on plan assets

Actual return on plan assets

Composition of fair value of plan assets

Bank balance

Sensitivity analysis on significant actuarial assumptions

Discount rate: +1%

Discount rate: -1%

Salary increase rate: +1%
Salary increase rate: -1%
Withdrawal rates: +10%
Withdrawal rates: -10%

1 year mortality age set back

I year mortality age set forward

2016 . 2015
(Rupees in '000)
15,613 13,442
" 1,644 1,753

1,405 1,341
- (1,343)
{561) 420

18,161 15,613
13,493 12,091
1,214 1,199
1,882 -

- (1,343)
{699) 1,546
"~ 15,890 13,493
1,644 1,753
191 142
1,835 1,895
(561) 420
699 (1,546)
138 (1,126}

o ]
515 2,745

15,890 13,493

2016
Present
value of

obligation
(Rapees in
- '000)
16,751
19,653
19,638
16,739
18,101
18,101
18,101
18,101



2016
Present
value of
. obligation
(Rupees in
l'm)
31.12 Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation
Year 1 874
Year 2 3,360
Year 3 737
Year 4 ' - 3,468
Year 5 ' 655
Year 6 to year 10 ' 8,923
Year 11 and above - o _ 23,204

3L13 The estimated charge for the year ending 31 December 2017 is Rs. 1.96 million (2015: Rs. 1.84 million).
3.  DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Branch has maintained an employee provident fund and investments out of provident fund have been made in

accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the Companies Ordinance 1984, and the rules formulated for this purpose.
The salient information of the fund is as follows:

2016 20 l 5
(Rupees in '000)
32.1 Employces' Provident Fund
Size of the fund | ' - 42,661 34,732
Cost / carrying value of investments made : 42,661 34,732
Percentage of investments made 100% - 100%
Breakup of investment : ' _
Bank balance ' 42,661 34,732
33  COMPENSATION OF GENERAL - _
MANAGER AND EXECUTIVES General Manager ) Executives
' o ' 2016 2015 2016 2015
{Rupees in "000)

Managerial remuneration _ ' - - 21,943 21,999
Tax bome by the Branch i 11,150 - 12,000 6,350 9,600
Contribution to defined contribution plan - - 2,192 1,624
Rent, utilities, house maintenance and other allowances 6,147 4,063 5,018 3,470
Others - 39 _ 89 . 357 375

' 17,386 16,152 35,860 37,068

- (Numbers) —

Number of persons ' 1 1 18 18

The General Manager and some executives have been provided with ﬁ'ee use of the Branch maintained cars and household
equipment in accordance with their terms of employment. The Genemi Manager and Deputy General Manager has been
provided Branch maintained furnished accomodation.

Executives mean _employeﬁ; other then the General Manager, whose basic salary exceed five hundred thousand rupees in a
financial year.

)



34. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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Fair value ofﬁxedtgrm loans, other assets, other liabilities, fixed term deposits andborrowmgs cannot be calculated with
sufficient reliability due to absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilitics and reliable data regarding
market rates for similar instruments,

The maturity and repricing profile and effective rates are stated in notes 39.2.3 and 39.3 respectively.

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly
different from their carrying values

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

IFRS-13 uniﬁesﬂwdeﬁniﬁonoffairvahmasthepﬂmﬂmﬁvouldbereceivedtosellanassetorpaidtotmnsfera
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Branch measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used

in making the measurements:

Levei 1: Fair value measurements ﬁsing quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.c. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.c.
unobservable inputs).

All assets and liability for which fair value is measured as disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hicrarchy based on the lowest level input and is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
L eeanse erreersusns (Rupees in '000).......c0000veee
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in available-for-sale securities , '

- Market treasury bills ' - 791,562 - 791,562
Off balance sheet financial instruments _ _ _ o
Foreign exchange contracts - purchase - 945,925 - 945,925
Foreign exchange contracts - sale’ - 71,574 - 71,574

2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets measured at fairvalee {Rupees in '000)................
Investments

- Market treasury bills ' - , - - -
Off balance sheet financial instruments ‘ ' o '

- Foreign exchange contracts - purchase - 1,433,296 - 1,433,296

Foreign exchange contracts - sale - - ' - -

The valuation techniques used for off balance sheet financial instraments are same as disclosed in note 6.10 to these

financial statements. The Branch's policy is to recognize transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels

at the date the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer occurred. There were no transfers between levels
1 and 2 during the year.
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1.

Financial instruments in level 1

Currently, no financial instruments are classified in level 1.

Financial instruments in fevel 2

Financial instruments included in level 2 comprise of forward exchange contracts.

Financial instraments in level 3

Currently, no financial instruments are classified in level 3.

SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows:

Taotal income

Total expenses

Net income / (loss)

Segment assets (gross)

Segment non performing loans
Segment provision required
Segment liabilitics

Segmient return on assets (ROA)
(%)

Scgment cost of funds (%)

Totai income

Total expenses

Net income / (loss)

Segment assets {gross)
Segment non-performing loans
Segment provision required
Segment liabilities

Segment return on assets
(ROA) (%)

Segment cost of finds (%)

TRUST ACTIVITIES

! The Branch is not engaged in any trust activity.

2016
Trading Retail Commercial Payment Others Total
and banking banking and
sales settlement
{Rupees in '000)
Jos894 } 30,611 171,869 - 1,445 599,819
(406424)f  (19,491) (161,022) - (2,007) (588,944)
(10,530) 11,121 10,846 - (562) 10,875
5,292,421 2,435 1,865,418 59,615 71,793 7,291,681
3,396,567 262,628 2,303,773 113,122 254,242 6,330,332
148% - 9.21% - - -
4.68% 735% 3.86% - - -
2015
Trading Retail Commercial Payment Others Total
and banking banking and
sales settlement
{Rupees in ‘000) :
370,969 36,975 191,571 - 4,315 603,830
{318,137) (29,188) (208,310) - (2,902) {558,537} .
52,832 7,787 (16,739) - 1,413 45293
4,144,610 10,930 2,666,241 127,674 17,751 6,967,206
4,684,326 | 296,605 1,690,970 6,211 12740t 6,805,513
6.83% - 8.51% - - -
4.14% 4.79% 5.73% - - -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS .

Hannchhmmlwadpmymmwiﬂ)iuHmeﬂiu,oduMmﬂm,emphym‘bencﬁtplansanditsamcuﬁvcoﬂim. Deteils of
transactions with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follaws:

Key Management :
Head Office and Branches personnel Retirement Benefits
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 - 2016 2018 2016 2015
———emesrnemeem{Rupees in '000)

Baiances
Depaosits
Balance at beginning of the year 13,253 4,832 637 477 48,224 43,051
Placement/deposits during the year 2,623,705 1,536,214 187 2,671 11,429 11,627
Withdrawals during the year (2,632,041) (1,527,788) {78) (2,511 {1,102) (6,454)
Balance at end of the year 4,922 13,258 746 637 58,551 48,224
Mark-up paysble in local currency - - 11 11 2,457 1,285
Transactions during the year

31 Decemtber 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Mark-up / return / interest expensed

Deposits carry mark-up rate ranging from 3.75% to 10.5% per annum (31 December 2015: 4% to 10.5% per annum).

Other transactions and balances (including profit and loss reiated transactions)

Batances with other banks

Interoffice borrowings

Mark-up payable in foreign currency

Net payable to defined benefit plan
Guarantees issued on behalf of related party

- Transactions during the year

Interest income on balances with other banks
Intcrest income on inter office lendings
Interest expense on interoffice borrowings
Inte:mexpmsgonimwofﬁccdeposi_ts
Contribution to retirement benefits

Approved gratuity fund
Contributory provident fund

Remuneration of key management personnel

2016 20158 2016 2015 2016 2015
- . 1n 26 3998 2,352
. Key management . .
Head Office and Branches personnel Retirement Benefits
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Decemiber 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 20158
{Rupees in '000)
59,615 127,674 - - - .
829232 1,409,814 - - - -
1911 1,115 - - - -

. . - 2211 2,120 -
4565363 1,616,888 - - - -
31 December 31 Deccmber 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015 206 2015

19 - 18 - - - -
412 114 - - - -
- 12,289 4,201 - . . .
28 28 - - - -
- - - - 1835 -
. . - . 2192 2,538
. . - - 4027 2,538
- - 53,246 53,220 : -
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39.2

CAPITAL ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY

Scope of Applications .

The Basel-TII Framework is applicable to the Branch and the Branch has adopted the Standardized approach for Credit and
Market Risk and Basic Indicator Approach for Operational Risk while using the simple approach for Credit Risk Mitigation
as per SBP gnidelines. :

Capital management

Objective of capital management:

The objectives and goals of managing capital of the Branch are as follows:

-« to be an appropristely capitalized institution, as defined by regulatory auvthorities

- to maintain strong ratings and protect the Branch against unexpected events
- to ensure the availability of adequate capital so as to enable the Branch to finance its operations

Statutory minimum upitil' requirement and management of capital

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BSD Circular No.07 dated April 15, 2009 requires the minimum paid up
capital (free of losses) for banks / development financial institutions (DFIs) to be raised to Rs. 10 billion till the year ended
December 31, 2013. However, branches of foreign banks operating in Pakistan are also required to comply with the above
minimum capital requirement prescribed for the locally incorporated banks / DFIs. However, those branches of foreign
banks whose head offices hold a minimum paid up capital of atleast US $ 300 million (free of losses) and have a capital
adequacy ratio (CAR) of atleast 8% or minimum prescribed by their home regulator whichever is higher and have
prescribed number of branches, are allowed to maintain lower amount with prior approval of SBP. In this regard, the

- Branch has obtained SBP's approval to maintain minimum required.- capital of Rs. 3 billion (free of losses) effective

December 31, 2010,
The head office capital account (free of losses) of the Branch for the year ended December 31, 2016 stood at Rs. 3,856.16
million and is in compliance with the said SBP requirement. In addition, the banks / branches are also required to maintain

a minimum capital adequacy ratio (CAR) of 10% of the risk weighted exposures of the banks / branches. The Branch's
CAR as at December 31, 2016 was 88.76% of its risk weighted exposures,

Capital Adequacy Ratio

The eapftal adequacy ratio of the Branch is subject to the Basel III capital adequacy guidelines stipulated by the State Bank

. of Pakistan through its BPRD Circular No. 06 of 2013 dated 15 August 2013. These Instructions are effective from 31

December 2013 in a phased manner with full implementation intended by 31 December 2019. Under Basel Il guidelines
banks / branches of foreign banks are required to maintain the following ratios on an ongoing basis.

Phase-in arrangement and full implementation of the minimum capital requirements

o Ason3l
Ratio Year December
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
CETI : 5.00% 5.50% 6.00% - 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
ADTI 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% - 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
Tier 1 6.50% 7.00% 7.50% 1.50% 7.50% 7.50% | 7.50%

" Total Capital . 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
*CCB 0.00% - 0.00% 0.25% 065%. | L1275% 1.90% 2.50% -
Total Capital plus CCB 10.00% 10.00% 10.25% 10.65% 11.275% 11.90% 12.50%

*(Consisting of CET1 only) '

Branch’s regulatory capital is analyzed into following tiers.

- Common Equity Tier I capital (CET1), which includes capital deposited with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and
unremitted profits. ' '

g_ - Additional Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital .are also prescribed by SBP but the Branch has no such eligible capital. -



39.2.1

The required capital adequacy ratio (10% of the risk weighted assets) is achieved by the Branch through improvement in
the assets quality at the existing volume level, ensuring better recovery management and maintaining composition of assets
with low risk. The total risk-weighted exposures comprise the credit risk, market risk and operational risk. The Branch has
complied with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the year. Further, there has been no material change
in the Branch's management of capital during the year. _

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of risk weights classified according to the nature of and
mﬂmﬁngmwﬁma&ofaedigmmtﬁmdopemﬁonﬂﬁsksumiﬂedwiﬁmhmﬂmdmmmparw,takinginto
account any eligible collateral or guarantee. A similar treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposure, with some
adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of potential future exposure.

The Branch will continue to maintain the required regulatory capital either through its risk management strategies or by
increasing the capital requirements in line with the business and capital needs.

The Branch calculates capital requirement for credit, market and operational risks using the methodology prescribed by
SBP. Banking operations are categorized as cither trading book or banking book and risk weighted assets are determined
according to specific requirements of the State Bank of Pakistan that seek to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to
-assets and off-balance sheet exposures. ‘ '

The Branch calculates capital requiremént as per Basel [1] regulatory framework, using the following approaches:

Credit risk ; Standardized approach
Market risk : Standardized approach
Operational risk : Basic indicator approach

The Branch uses the ratings issued by the Pakistan Credit Ratmg Agency Limited (PACRA) and JCR-VIS Credit Rating
'Company Limited (JCR-VIS) for its local currency exposures and ratings issued by Moody’s, S&P, and Fitch for its
foreign ‘currency exposures. These External Credit Assessments Institutions (ECAIs) have been approved by the State
Bank of Pakistan. '

Types of exposures and ECAls Used - 2016 JCR-VIS PACRA Moody’s,
Types of exposures (Local (Local S&P, and
, Currency) Currency) - Fitch
' (Foreign
Currency)
Corporate ' - x -
Banks X X X

The Branch prefers solicited ratings over unsolicited ratings at all times, owing to the greater degree of accuracy (in
general} associated with solicited ratings as compared to unsolicited ratings. Unsolicited ratings may only be used in cases
where a solicited rating is not available. ' :

The alignment of the Alphanumerical scale of each agency used with risk buckets is as per the instructions. laid down by
SBP under Basel III requirements. '

Leverage Ratio

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BPRD Circular No. 06 of 2013 has issued instructions regarding
implementation of parallel run of leverage ratio reporting and its components from December 31, 2013 to December
31,2017.During this period the final calibration, and any further adjustments to the definition, will be completed, with a
view to set the leverage ratio as a separate capital standard on December 31, 2018. Banks are required to disclose the
Ieverageratio from December 31, 2015. : : :

The Basel III leverage ratio is defined as the capital measure (the numerator) divided by the exposure measure
(thedenominator), with this ratio expressed as a percentage:

Leverage Ratio = Tier 1 capi la ucti
Total Exposure _
As at December 31, 2016, Bank’s Leverage ratio stood at 19.72% which is well above the minfrum requirement of 3.0%



393  Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CETI): Instroments and reserves

1 Fully Paid-up Capital/ Capital deposited with SBP

2 Balanoe in Share Premium Account

3 Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares

4 Discount on Essue of shares

5 General/ Statutory Rescrves

6 Guin/{Losses) on derivatives heid as Cash Flow Hedge

7 Unapgpropriated/enremitted profits/ (losses)

8 Minority Interests arising from CET1 cupmmummmwdfothndpumsbymsohdmdbmk
subsidiarics (amount allowed in CET1 capital of the consolidation group) )

9 CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments

10 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 (Note39.3.l)

11 Common Equity Tier 1

Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital
12 Qualifying Additions] Tier-1 caplulmsmmemsplmmyrdmdshmpmnm
13 of which: Classificd as equity
14  of which: Classified as linbilities

15 Additional Tier-1 capital instrumcats issucd to third partios by consolidated subsidiaries (smount allowed in

group AT 1)
16 of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out
17 AY1 before regulatory adjustments
18 Total regulatory adjustment zpplicd to AT1 capital (Note 39.3.2)
19 Additicnal Tier 1 capital after regulatory adjustments
20 Additional Tier 1 capital recognized for capital adequacy
21 Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + adusissible AT1) (11+20)

Tier 2 Capital
22 Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel I plus any related share premiym
23 Tier 2 capital instrurents subject to phaseout arrangement issued under pre-Basel 3 rules

24 TthwmmmWWWMWMMM(&thmﬁnﬂ

25  of which: instruments issucd by subsidiarics subject to phase cut
26 General provisions or general resexves for loan losses-up to maximom of 1.25% of Credit Risk Weighted
27 Revaluation Reserves (net of taxcs)

28  of which: Revaluation reserves on fixed assets

29  of which: Unrealized gains/losscs on AFS

30 Forcign Exchange Translation Reserves

31 Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any)

32 T2 before regulatory adjusiments.

33 Total regulatory adjustment applicd to T2 capital (Note 39.3.3)

34 Tier 2 capital (T2) after regulatory adjustments

35 Tier 2 capital recognized for capital adequacy

36 Portion of Additional Tier 1 capital recognized in Tier 2 capital

37 Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adeqaacy

38 TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2) (21+37)

39 Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) (Note 39.6)

~ Capital Ratios and buffers (in percentage of risk weighted assets)

40 CET1 to total RWA

41 Tier-I capital to total RWA

42 Total capital to total RWA

43 Bank specific buffer requirement {minimum CET1 mqmranmtplus capitel conservation buffer plus any
other buffer requirement)

44 of which: capital conscrvation buffer requircment

45 - of which: countercyclical buffer requirement

46  of which; D-SIB or G-SIB buffer requirement

47 CET1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage of risk weighted asscts)
National minimum capital requivements prescribed by SBP

48 CET1 minimum ratio

49 Tier 1 mininum ratio

dp{"l‘ftal capital minimom ratie

31 December

31 December

2016 - 2015
{Rupees in '000)
3,856,160 3,856,160
172,478 161,693
4,028,638 4,017,853
7,950 11,534
4,020,688 4,006,319
4,020,688 4,006,319
4,020,688 4,006,319
4,529,794 4,786,420
88.76% 83.70%
§8.76% 83.70%
58.76% 83.70%
6.00% 6.00%
7.50% 7.50%
10.65% 10.25%
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27
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Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjestments
Goodwill (nct of related deferred tax Linbility)

All other intangibles (nct of any associated deferred tax liability)
Shortfall in provisions against classified nssets

Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitshility excluding those
arising from temporary differences (net of related tax Liability)

Defined-benefit pension fund net assets
Reciprocal cross holdings in CETI capital instruments of banking,
financial and insurance entities

Cash flow hedge reserve

Investment in own shares/ CET? instruments
Securitization gain on sale

Capital shortfall of reguiated subsidisries
Dcﬁmmawoumofmﬂum&mbmk':holdmgsofﬁxed
asset/ AFS

Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and -
insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, where the bank docs not own more than 10% of the
issued sharc capital (amount abowe 10% threshold)

Significant investments in the common stocks of banking,
financial and insurance entitics that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation (amount sbove 10% threshold)
Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporsry differcnces (amount
above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability)
Amount exceeding 15% threshold
of which: significant investments in the commeoa stocks of
of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences
National specific regulatory adjestments spplied to CET1 capital
Investments in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit
Any other deduction specified by SBF (mention details)

_ Adjustment to CET1 due to insufficient AT1 and Ticr 2 to cover

deductions
Total regulatory adjnstments applied to CET!

Addltional Tier-1 & Tier-1 Capital: regulatory adjustmeats
Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit [SBP
specific adjustment}

Investment in own AT1 capital instruments

Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments
of banking, finsncial and insurance eutitics

Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and
insurance entities tha are outside the scope of regulstory
consolidation, where the bank docs not own more than 10% of the
issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)

Sigrificant investments in the capital instruments of hanking,
financial and insurance entitics that are outside the scope of

Portion of deduction applicd 50:50 to Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital
based on pre-Basel I treatment which, during transitional period,
remain subject to deduction from additional tier-1 capital

Adjustments to Additional Tier 1 duetomsuﬁimau'l‘mim
cover deductions

Total regulatory adjustment applied to AT1 capltal

31 Decemeber 2016

31 Decemeber 2015

su!:::o.:re- Amounts subject
Amount- Ampunt to Pre- Basel IIT
Basel 1Y treatment
{reatment
{Rupees I '800)—————umusn
7,633 - 11,534 .
nr - - -
7.950 - 11,534 -
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Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments

Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier-1 and Ticr-2 capits!
based on pre-Basel I treatment which, during transitional period,
remain subject to deduction from tier-2 capital

Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instraments of banking,
financial and i s 7 :
Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument

Lavestments in the capital instruments of banking, financiai and
insurance eatitics that are outsidc the scope of regulatory
consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued share capital (amount sbove: 10% threshold)

Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by
banking, financial and insurance catities that are ovtside the scope
of regulatory consolidation

Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital

Additional Information

Risk Weighted Assets subject to pre-Basel T treatment
Risk weighted asscts in respect of deduction iems {which
during the transitional period will be risk weighted subject to Pre-

Basel Il Trestment)

of which: deferred tax assets .

of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

of which: Recognized portion of investment in capital of
banking, financisi and insurance catities where holding is less
than 10% of the issucd common share capital of the entity

of which: Recognized portion of investment in capital of
banking, financial and insurance entities wisere holding is more
than 10% of the issued common share capital of the catity

Amouats below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)

Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial entities
Significant investments in the common stock of financial entities

Deferred tax asscts wising from tempocary differences (nct of rlated tax lishility) ' - -

Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2
Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures
subject to standardized approach (prior to spplication of cap)

Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardized
approach '

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures
subject to internal ratings-based spproach (prior to application of
cap) .

Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 wirder internal ratings-
based approach

o

31 Decemeber 2016 . 31 Decemeber 2015
y mb?:: n;sn- Amounts subject
Amount Amount to Pre- Basel Il
Basel I eatmet
treatment

Rapees in "000——— e

31 December
2016 31 December 2015

Rapees in '000




39.4 Capital Structure Reconcilistion

Balance sheet of the Under reguiatory
Table: 39.4.1 (Step 1) published financial | |~ scopeof
statements consolidation
31 December 2016 31 December 2016
(Rupees in '000)
" Asscts
Cash and balances with treasury banks 3,526,232 3,526,232
Balanced with other banks 59,615 59,615
Lending to financial institutions 4,010,103 4,010,103
Investiments 791,562 ‘791,562
Advances 1,851,745 1,851,745
Operating fixed assets 47,719 47,719
Deferred tax assets - -
Other assets 71,677 71,677
Total assets 10,358,653 10,358,653
Liabilities & Fquity
Bills payable 113,122 113,122
Borrowings 829,231 829,231
Deposits and other accounts 5,144,438 5,144,438
Sub-ordinated loans - -
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - -
Deferred tax liabilities : 1,696 1,696
Other liabilities - 241,845 241,845
Total lisbilities 6,330,332 6,330,332
Share capital/ Head office capital account 3,856,160 3,856,160
Reserves ' - -
Unappropriated/ Unremitted profit/ (losses) 172,478 172,478
Minority Interest - -
Surplus on revaluation of assets (317 (317)
4,028,321 4,028,321
Total liabilities & equity 10,358,653 10,358,653
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' Balsnce sheetasin | Under regulstory
Table: 39.4.2 (Step 2) published financial scope of Ref
Siatements consolidation
As 5t 31 December  As at 31 December
2016 2016
Assets .
Cash and balances with treasury banks 3,526,232 3,526,232
Balanced with other banks - 59,615 59,615
Lending to finencial institutions 4,010,103 4,010,103
Investments 791,562 791,562
aof which: Non-significant capital investments in capital of other financial . : a
institutions exceeding 10% threshold
of which: significant capital investments in financial sector entities . ) b
exceeding regulatory threshold
af which: Mutual Funds exceeding regulatory threshold - - ¢
of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument - - d
of which: others (CAP 2 deductions under Basel I (50% from Tier-1 and . . e
50% from Tier-2) )
Advances 1,851,745 1,851,745
shortfall in provisions/ excess of total EL amount over eligible . . £
provisions under IRB
general provisions reflected in Tier 2 capital - - £
Fixed Assets 47,719 47,719
of which: Goodwill - - i
of which: Intangibles 7.633 7,633 k
Deferred Tax Assets - -
of which: DTAs excluding those arising from temporary differences - - h
of which: DTAs arising from temporary differences exceeding regulatory i
threshold . )
Other nsseis _ 71,677 71,677
of which: Goodwill - - j
af which: Intangibles - k
of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets - - i
Total assets 10,358,653 10,358,653
Liabilities & Equity
Bilis payable 113,122 113,122
Borrowings 829,231 829,231
Deposits and other accounts 5,144,438 5,144,438
Sub-ordinated loans : -
of which: eligible for inclusion in AT, m
of which: eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 n
Liabilitics against assets subject to finance lease -
Deferred tax liabilities . 1,696 1,696 ;.
of which: DTLs related to goodwill o
of which: DTLs related to intangible assets - - p
of which: DTLs related to defined pension fund net assets (1,017)5 (1017 q
of which: other deferred tax labilities o 2n3 2713 r
Other liabilities 241,845 241,845 :
Tatal liabilities 6,330,332 6,332,028

Setr




Share capital
of which: amount eligible for CET!
of which: amaunt eligible for AT]
Discount on issue of right shares
Reserves

of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET]:Statutory Reserves

of which: portion eligible for inchciou in Tier 2
Convertible preference shares
Accumulated Profits / (losses)
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET!
gf which: portion eligible for inclusion in AT!
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2
Surplus (deficit) on revaluation of assets
of which: Revaluation reserves on Property
of which: Unrealized Gains/Losses on AFS
In case of Deficit on revaluation (deduction from CET1}
Total liabilities & Equity

As at 31 December
2016

As at 31 Decemnber
2016

3,856,160
3,856,160

(317)

a7

3,856,160
. 3,856,160

@1n

317}

4,028,321

4,028,321

Table: 39.4.3

Component of
- reguintory
capital reported by
bank
{(amount in thousand
FKR)

Source based on
reference number
from Step 2

Common Equity Tier 1 capitsl (CET1): Instruments and reserves

Fully Paid-up Capital/ Capitat deposited with SBP -

Balance in Share Premium Account

Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares

General/ Ststitory Reserves
Gain/(Losses) on derivatives held as Cash Fiow Hedpe
Unappropriated/unremitted profits/(losses) _

Minority Interests arising from CET1 capital instruments issued to third party
by consolidated bank subsidiaries (amount allowed in CET capital of the
congolidation group)

3N AWM e

3,856,160

172,478

@

W)
W)

®

8 CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments

4,028,638

9 Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability)

10 All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax lisbility) -

11 Shortfall of provisions against classified assets

12 Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from|
temporary differences (net of related tax lisbility)

13 Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

14 Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments

15 Cash flow hedge reserve

16 Investment in own shares/ CET1 mstrunwnl:

17 Securitization gain on sale

18 Capitdl shortfall of regulated subsidiaries

19 Deficit on account of revaluation from bank’s holdings of property/ AFS

20 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance
entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank
does not own more than 10% of the issucd share capital (amount above 10%

P

@-@
- @
®

{®)-(r} * 60%

{® - (@} *60%
()

(ab)

(a) - (ac) - (ac)

N

B



21 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial
and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
{amount above 10% threshold)

22 Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10%
threshold, net of related tax liability)

23 Amount exceeding 15% threshold

2 of which: significant investments in the cotnmon stocks of financial entities

25  of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences

26 National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 capital

27  Investment in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit

. 28 Any other deduction specificd by SBP (mention details)

29 Regulatory adjustment applied to CET1 due to insuificient AT1 and Tier 2 to
cover deductions .

30 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CETT (sum of 9 to 25)
Commeon Equity Tier 1 '

Additional Tier I (AT 1) Capital

31 Quslifying Additional Tier-1 instruments plus any related share premium

32 of which: Classified as equity

33 . of which: Classified as Habilitics

24 Additional Tier-1 capital instruments issued by consclidated subsidiaries and
held by third parties (amount allowed in group AT 1)

35  of which; instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phasc out

36 ATI before regulatory adjustments

7.950

® - (o) - (2D

®

4,020,688

®
(m)

®

Table: 39.4.4

Component of
regulatory
capital reported by

~ bank
(amount in thousand

PKR)

Source based on
reference number
from Step 2

Additionat Tier 1 Capital: regulatory sdjustments

17 Investment in mutual fimds exceeding the prescribed limit {(SBP specific
adjustment)

38 Investment in own AT1 capital instruments -

39 Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instraments

40 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance
_ entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank
doesmtownmcﬁmnlﬂ%ofﬂremsmdshmcamﬁsl(amomtabowlﬂ%
threshold)

4 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial

and insurance entities that are cutside the scope of regulatory consolidation

42 Portion of deduction applicd 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital
based on pre-Basel Il treatrnent which, during transitional period, remain
subject fo deduction from tier-1 capital

43 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 dueto lnmﬁ‘iemt'l‘lerz
to cover deductions

44 Total of Regulatory Adjustment apphed to AT1 capital

45 Additional Tier 1 capital

(ac)

(ad)

46 Additional Tier 1 capital recognized for upitll ndequacy

Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1)

it

4,020,688




Table: 39.4.5

Component of
regulatory
capital reported by
bank
(amount in thousand

PKR)

Source based on
reference number
from Step 2

47
48

49

50
51

52
53
54
35
56
37

58

59

61

62

63
64
65
66
67

Tier 2 Capital

Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Base! HI
Capital instruments subject to phase out arrangement from ticr 2 (Pre-Basel IIf
instrurnents)
Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third party by consolidated subsidiaries
(amount allowed in group tier 2)

of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out
General Provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to maximum
of 1.25% of Credit Risk Weighted Assets
Revaluation Reserves cligible for Tier 2

of which: portion pertaining to Property

of which: portion pertaining to AFS securities
Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves
Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any)
T2 before regulatory adjustments

Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments

Partion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital
based on pre-Basel Il treatment which, during transitional peciod, remain
subject to deduction from tier-2 capital

Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instraments

Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument

Investments in the capitel instruments of banking, financial and insurance
entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank
docs not own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10%
threshold) :

Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial
and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
Amount of Regulatory Adjustment spplied to T2 capital

Tier 2 capital (T2)

Tier 2 capital recognized for capital adequacy

Excess Additlonal Ticr | capital recognized in Tier 2 capital

Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy

TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2)

P

(m)

@

portion of (aa)
4]

(a)
(ah




1

1

10
11
12
13

15
16

17
18
19
20
21

23

25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34

35

36
37

G0~ N U
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39.5 Main Features Regulatory Capital Instrument

Main Features

Issuer

Unique identifier (eg KSE Symbol or Bloomberg identifier etc.)
Goveming law(s) of the instrument
Regulatory treatment

Transitional Basel Il rules

Post-transitionat Basel III rules

Eligible at solo/ group/ group&solo
Instrument type _
Amount recognized in regulatory capital (Currency in PKR thousands, as
of reporting date)
Par value of instrument.
Accounting classification
Original date of issuance
Perpetual or dated
Original maturity date
Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval
Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount
Subsequent call dates, if applicable
Coupons / dividends
Fixed or floating dividend/ coupon
coupon rate and any related index/ benchmark
Existence of a dividend stopper
Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory
Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem
Noncumulative or cumulative
Convertible or non-convertible
If convertible, conversion trigger (s)
If convertible, fully or partially
If convertible, conversion rate
If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion
If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into
If convertible, specify issuer of instrument if converts into
Write-down feature
If write-down, write-down trigger(s)
If write-down, full or partial
If write-down, permanent or temporary
If temporary write—down, description of write-up mechanism

Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation (spectfy instrument type
immediately senior to instrument

Non-compliant transitioned features

If yes, specify non-compliant features -

Common Equity

The Bank of Tokyo -
Mitsubishi UFJ

State Bank of Pakistan

Common Equity Tier I
Common Equity Tier I
" Solo
Head office capital Rs.
(Thousand}) 3,856,160



396 Risk Weighted Assets .

The risk weighted assets to cagital mtio, calculated in accordance with the State Bank of Pakistan's guidclines on capital adequacy was as follows:

Credit Risk
Portfolios subject to standardized approach
On-Balance sheet

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Claims on Government of Pakistan
(Fadudor?mvmcmlGovummm)andSBP denominated in PKR

Foreign Currency claims on SBP arising out of statutory obligations
of banks in Pakistan

Claims on other sovereigns and on Governmest of Pakistan or
mmnwmusapdmmmmmiumﬁm

ChmmBmkfor[munm:lSetﬂmu Intwnauonaleetuy
F\md,qu:mCmﬂBmk,mﬂEummemmﬂy

Claims on Multilateral Development Banks

Claims on Public Sector Entities in Pakistan

Claims on Banks _

Claims, denominated in forcign currency, on banks with original
maturity of 3 months or less
Clmmbmksw:ﬂwngmnlmnﬁﬂyoﬂmﬂuoﬂcss
denominated in PKR and funded in PKR.

Claims on Corporates (excluding equity exposurcs)

Claims categorized as retail portfolio

Claims fully secured by residential property (Residential Mortgage
Finance as defined in Section 2.1)

Past Duc loans;

by other banks (other than those deducicd from capital) held in the
banking book.

Uniisted equity investments (other than that dedcted from capital)
held in banking bock

Significant investment and DTAs above 15% threshoid

Fixed assets -

Claims on all fixed asscts uader operating lease

All other assets {excluding markup reccivables)

Off-Balance sheet
Non-market related
Market related

Equity Exposure Risk in the Banking Book
Market Risk

Capital Requirement for portfolios subject to Standardized Approach

Eaui ition risk
Forcign Exchange risk

Operational Risk
Capital Adequacy Ratios

CET1 to total RWA
Ticr-1 capital o total RWA

'D ;otalcapitalmlotalRWA

Capital Requirements Risk Weighted Assets
2016 2018 2016 2015
{Rupees in '000)
9,753 12,755 91,582 127,549
1270 2,554 11,923 25,535
75983 62,310 713,459 623,096
186,952 251,299 1,755,414 2,512,988
788 | 247 7395 2470 |
278 297 2,607 2973
4,269 4,991 40,086 49,908
1,304 1,761 16,937 17,606
281,097 336,213 2,639403 3362125
143,698 94,823 1,349,279 948,227
164 352 1,539 3,523
143,862 95,175 1,350,818 951,750
424,959 431,388 3,990,221 4,313,875
5,087 2417 47,761 24,169
1,129 274 10,600 2,738
6,216 2,691 53,361 26,907
51,249 44,564 481,212 445,638
482423 478,642 4,529,794 4,786,420
2016 2015
Required Actual Required Actual
" 6.00% 88.76% 6.00% 83.70%
7.50% 88.76% 7.50% 83.70%
10.65% 88.76% 10.25% - 83.70%




40

40.1.1

40.1.2

' RISK MANAGEMENT

The Branch is primarily subject to credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. The General Manager of the
Branch has the overall responsibility for the management of those risks. The policies and procedures for managing these
risks are outlined below. The basic premise of risk control and management is to comprehensively control and manage the
risks of the Branch using a uniform standard approach as much as possible. The objective of comprehensive risk control
and management is to provide the basis for the achievement of stable profit balanced with risk, achievement of an
appropriate capital structure, appropriate allocation of resources, and other goals, by identifying / recognizing, evaluating /
calculating, controlling and monitoring / reporting all risks, . '

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of sustaining a loss due to reduction or termination of the value of assets (including off-balance
sheet assets), caused by an obligor’s deteriorated credit standing or default of agreement,

The Branch's credit evaluation system comprises of well designed credit appraisal, sanctioning and constant review
procedures for the purpose of emphasizing prudence in its lending activities and ensuring quality of assets portfolio. The
objectives of credit evaluation system are to keep credit risk exposures within permissible level relevant to the Branch’s
risk capital, to maintain the soundness of assets and to ensure returns commensurate with risk. Special attention is paid to
the management of non-performing loans if any, which would be closely monitored both at the Branch's level as well as its
Head Office level. A "Close Watch” mechanism is in function which identifies carly warning signals of loans and
advances becoming non-performing. ' :

The Branch has implemented its own intemal risk rating system for the credit portfolio, as per guidelines of the State Bank
of Pakistan, which arc further approved by the Head Office. Credit ratings by external rating agencies, if available, are
also congidered. . :

The Branch constantly examines its total credit exposures and considers analytical and systematic approaches to its credit
structure categorized by group and industry.

Concentration of credit and deposit

CmditﬁskistbnﬁsktbatonepaﬂytoaﬁnancialinMntwiﬂfaﬂto discharge an obligation and cause the other party
to incur a financial loss. Credit risk is monitored, reviewed and analyzed by Asset Liability Management Committee
{ALM), which has established credit lines and credit limits to control exposure to counter parties.

Out of the total financial assets of Rs. 10,286.46 million (2015: Rs. 10,746.18 million), the financial assets which were
subject to credit risk amounted to Rs, 5,968.66 million (2015: Rs. 6,513.02 million). To manage credit risk the Branch
applies credit limits to its customers and obtains adequate coliateral.

Segmental information

Segmental information is presented in respect of the class of business and geographiéal distribution of advances, deposits,
contingencies and commitments. _ _ .



| 40.12.1 Segments by class of business

Automobiles and Transportation
equipment

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals
Construction

Electronics and eloctrical appliances

Financial |

Individuals

Paper and Board

Wholesale and Retail Trade

Food and Beverage

Power, oil, gas & water

Trust

Others

Automobiles and Transportation
equipment

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals
Construction

Electronics and electrical appliaaces
Financial

Individuals

Paper and Board

Wholesale and Retail Trade
Others

s

2016
M) Daess  Cpimen i
(Rupees Percent (Rupees Percent {Rupees Percent
in '000) (%) in '000) (%) in '000) (%)
611,225 3301 231,085 4.49 652,599 - 10.64
743,864 40.17 3,004,974 58.41 32,792 053

- . 9,383 0.18 . -

- - 148 0.00 - -
135,097 - 1.30 4,902 0.10 5,439,610 88.68
17,309 0.93 303,573 5.90 - -

- - - 0.00 - -

- - 471 0.01 - -

- - 936,344 18.20 -

. . 3 0.00 .

- - 98,164 1.91 -
344,250 1859 . 555,181 10.79 9,172 0.15

1,851,745 100 5,144,438 100 6,134,173 100
2015
Advances (gross) Deposits Contingencies and
(Rupees Percent (Rupees Percent (Rupees Percent
in '000) (%) in '000) (%) in'000) = (%)
624,606 24.12 457,901 8.77 538,107 14.85
1,577,472 60.91 3,503,336 67.07 25,742 0.71

- - 14,354 0.27 - -

- - 474 0.01 - -
130,586 5.04 - - 3,050,184 84.18
16339 063 286454 5.48 - -

393 0.02 _

- . 96,511 1.85 - -
240,000 9.27 864288  16.55 9,366 0.26

2,589,396 100 5,223,318 100.00 3,623,399 100




40.1.2.2 Secgment by sector

: 2016
Advances Deposits Contingencies and
commitments
(Rupees Percent (Rupees Percent (Rupees Percent
in '000) (%) in '060) (%) in '000) (%)
Public / government - - 195 0.01 4,539,593 74.00
Private 1,851,745 100 5,144,243 99.99 1,594,580 26.00
1,851,748 100 5,144,438 160 6,134,173 100
: 2015
Advances - Deposits Contingencies and
(gross) commitments
(Rupees - Percent {Rupees Percent (Rupees Percent
in '000) (%) in '000) (%) in '000) (%)
Public / government - - 195 0.01 - -
Private 2,589,396 100 5,223,123 99.99 3,623,399 100
2,589,396 100 5,223,318 100 3,623,399 100
40.1.2.3 Geographical segment analysis
. ' 2016
Proflt Total Net assets Contingencies
before assets employed and
taxation employed commitments
(Rupees in '000)
Pakistan 28,621 10,358,653 4,028,321 6,134,173
Asia Pacific (including South Asia) - - - -
Europe - - - -
United States of America and Canada - - - -
Middle East - - - -
Others - - - -
28,621 10,358,653 4,028,321 6,134,173
2015
Profit Total Net assets Contingencies
“before assets employed and
taxation employed commitments
: (Rupees in "000)
Pakistan 62,765 10,823,366 4,017,853 3,623,399
Asia Pacific (including South Asia) - - - -
Europe : - - - -
Uhited States of America and Canada “ - - -
Middle East ' - - - -
Others - - - -
62,765 10,823,366 4,017,853 3,623,399

D




40.2

40.2.1

P

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of sustaining a loss due to a change in the price of assets or liabilities held (including off-balance
sheet assets and liabilities) resulting from changes of risk factors like interest rates, exchange rates, equity prices, commodity
prices and others. Market liquidity risk is that of sustaining a loss due to mablhty to trade required quantities at a reasonable
level, due to market turmoil or a lack of trade mlume in the market.

With the full understanding that market risk is unavoidable in the Branch's business activities and that rapid handling of it is
required, the Branch has a very effective system to manage and control market risks. In managing and controlling market
liquidity risks, each product's market scale and market liquidity has always been sufficiently considered, to prevent any
inability to cancel or reduce positions when necessary, .

TheanchusastheSmdardwedAppmachmealmﬂatecapmlchmgeformmketmkasperBaselIlIregulatory
framework. Details of capital charge for market risk are given in note 39.6.

Foreign exchange risk -

Foreign exchange risk represents exposures to changes in the values of current holdings and future cash flows denominated
in foreign currencies. The potential for loss arises from the process of revaluing foreign currency positions in rupee terms.
The Branch's foreign exchange risk is limited to future cash flows in foreign currencies arising from foreign exchange
transactions mdtranslatmnofnetopenposmonmforetgnmnencm Forward contracts are used to mitigate foreign
exchange risks, the Branch however remains exposed to such risk to the extent of net open position.

Assets | Linbilities e S foreign
and Head sheet currency
Office capital items exposure
{Rupees in '000)
Pakistan rupee . 10,213,084 9,359,848 (874,248) (17,966)
United States dollar ' . 138,997 928,462 802,574 15,063
Great Britain pound 1,037 ; ] 1,037
Singapore dollar 95 - - 195
Japanese yen | ) - ns 70343 71,674 1,556
Euro ' : 2 . . 42
Other currency ' _ 73 - - , 7 .73

10,358,653 10,358,653 - -




2015 ,
Assets Liabilities and Off-balance - Net foreign
Head Office sheet currency
" capital items exposure
(Rupees in '000)
Pakistan rupee 10,625,164 9217915 - (1,433,296) (26,047)
United States dollar 192,233 1,602,216 1,433,296 23,313
Great Britain pound 1,428 . - 1,428
Singapore dollar 197 - - 197
Japanese yen 4,255 3,235 - 1,020
Euro 85 - - 85
Other currencies 4 - - 4
10,823,366 10,823,366 - -
40.2.2 Yield I interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from adverse movements in interest rates. The Asset Liability Management Committee
(ALM) monitors and manages the interest rate risk with the objective of limiting the potential adverse effects on the
profitability of the Branch arising from fluctuation in the market interest rates and mismatching or gaps in the amount of
financial assets and financial liabilities in different maturity time bands.

The Branch's interest rate exposure is calculated by categorizing its interest sensitive assets and liabilities into various time

- bands based on the earlier of their contractual repricing or maturity dates,

(hap

Yield / interest rate risk in the Banking Book

The Branch holds financial assets and financial liabilities with different maturities or repricing dates and linked to different
benchmark rates, thus creating exposure to unexpected changes in the level of interest rates. Interest rate risk in the banking
book refers to the risk associated with interest-bearing financial instruments that are not held in the trading book of the
Branch. :

Repricing gap analysis presents the Branch’s interest sensitive assets (ISA) and interest sensitive liabilities (ISL),
categorized into various time bands based on the earlier of their contractual repricing or maturity dates. Deposits with no -
fixed maturity dates are included in the lowest, one-menth time band, but these are not expected to be payable within a one-
month period. The difference between ISA and ISL for each time band signifies the gap in that time band, and provides a
workable framework for determining the impact on net interest income.

The Branch reviews the repncmg gap analyzis penodwally to monitor and manage interest rate risk in the banking book.



#4023 Mismatch of luterest rate sensitive assets and fiabitities

2016

Effective

. Not exposed
yied/ Upto1 Over 1 - Overd Over§ Over1 Over2 Over3 Over 5 Above to yleld /
interest month to3 . months to mouths to o2 0l s to 10 10 years interest
rate months 6 mouths 1 year years years years years rate
. - (Rupees b *000)
Flaancial Instruments
Asseta
Cash and balxnces with
treasury basks T 000% 3,526,233 - - - 3,526,132
Balances with other banks 0.16%- 1.25% 59,615 59,515 - - . - -
Lendings to flnancial Institutions SA45% - 5.75% 4,010,103 3,204,812 348,394 306,897 150,000 - -
Investment S94% - 5.99% 791,562 - 791,562 . - - -
Advances : O 300%-10.30% 1,851,745 1,127,295 290,000 135,030 308 286,245 4,140 8,727 -
Other anets 47199 - - - - - - 47,199
, 10,286,456 439,722 1,429,956 41,927 150,308 286,245 4,140 . 8 3573431
Linbilities _ :
Bills payable 113,122 - - - - 113,122
Borrowings . 1.04% - 1.34% 229,231 171,621 09,197 {] 448413 - -
Deposits and other acconnts 3.75% - 10.50% $,144,438 3,786,455 261,100 660,600 436,883
Other liabilitles 163,720 - - - 163,720 |
6,250,511 3,958,076 470297 1,108,413 713,725
On-balance sheet gap U 33646 959.659 (656,486). 150,308 286,248 4140 8727 2889706 _
Off-balunce sheet financial instruments . , .
Commiteents in respect of forward exchange
contracts - purchase 945,821 945,821
Commitments In respect of forward exchange
contracis - sale 7,574 71,574
Off-balance sheet gap 8427 74,267
Total yleld / interest riak sensitivity gap 433,646 959,659 (666,486) 150,308 - 286245 L0, L7
Cunuulative yield / interest riak sensitivity gap 433646 1393305 726320 STLU8 _ STRI _ B7TII8 1163373 LIETSI 1176240

Py

Total , _Exposed to yield / interest risk,




_ 2015
Effective Toml _ Exposed to yieM!/imeres risk Not exposed

yield/ Upto 1 Ower | Over 3 Over 6 Overt Over 2 Over3 Over Above toyield/
imterest month 03 months o months to 02 o3 to§ to 10 10 years interest
e months 6 months 1 year years years years years rate
{Rupees in '000) :
PFlaancial hatruments
Assets
© Cash and balances with . .
tressury benks : 4,233,157 49,528 - - - g - - - - 4,183,629
Balances with other banks 0.08% - 1.25% 127,674 127,674 - -
Lending 1o financial institutions 5.5%-6.5% " 3,741,212 3,111,986 289,554 339,672 . . - - - .-
Advances . -3%-11.07% 2,589,396 1,444,892 650,337 130,503 85,104 |{ - 119,556 61,725 95,728 Liss{l - 366 -
" Other assets 54.741 - : - - : - - - - - - 54,741
- 10,746,180 4,734,080 919,891 470,175 25,104 119,556 61,725 95,728 1,188 366 4238 370
' Linbiities .
Bills paysble : . 6211 - - - 6211
' Borrowings 0ATY% - 0.81% 1409814 104,741 209,482 1,095,591 - . - - - . -
- Deposits and other accounits 4%-10.5% 5223318 4,744,663 75,100 700 - 5,000 - - . - - 397,855
" Other liabilities 136,237 - - N - . - i . . 136,237 |
: 6,775,580 4,849 404 284 582 1,096,291 - 5,000 - . - - - 540,303
On-balance sheet gap 1,970,600 (115,324) §55.309 (626,116) 35,104 114,556 §L725 95728 1,185 366 3,698,067

Off-belance sheet financial instruments

" Coramitments in respect of forward exchange . . . .
contracty - purchase _ 1,433,296 _ - - - - - - - - - 1,433,296

Commitments in respect of forward exchange

coniracts -sale

Off-balance sheet gap 1,433,296 - - - - - - - - _ - 1,433,296
- Total yield / interest risk sensitivity gap (115.324) 553,309 (626,116) 84,104 114,556 61,725 95,728 L185 366

Cumulstive yield / interest risk sensitivity gap (115,324) $39,985 (86,131) (1L027) 113,529 175,254 270,982 272,167 272,533

e



Yield risk is the risk of decline in eamings due to adverse movement of the yield curve.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest rates.

2016 2015
(Rupees in '000)
Reconciliation to total assets . Reconciliation to total labilities
Balance as per balance sheet 10,358,653 10,823,366 Balance as per balance sheet
Less: Non-financial assets Less; Non-financial liabilities
Operating fixed assets 47,719 51,442 Other liabilities -
Other agsets 24,478 15,744 Deferred tax liabilities
- 72,197 77,186 o .

Total financial assets 10,286,456 10,746,180 Total financial liabilities

Py

2016 2015
(Rupees in '000)

6,330,332 6,305,513

78,126 25,482
1,696 4,451
79,822 29,933

6,250,511 6,775,580




403  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk caused, among others by the inability of the Branch to settle liabilities at due date. The liquidity risk policy is formulated keeping in view State wn:_n.. guidelines on risk

- management and best market practice. In case of any conflict between any provision of this policy and any regulation for the time being in force, the regulation in force will prevail.

Objectives of our liquidity management is 1o ensure that the Branch is able to honour all its financial commitments on an ongoing basis without (i) effecting the cost of funds (ii) adversely
effecting ability to raise funds and (iii) resorting to sale of assets.

40.3.1

. Assets
. Cash and balances with
tressury banks
Balances with other banks
Lending to financial
institutions
- Investments
Advances
Operating fixed assets
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

Liabilities

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Net assets

Head Office capitsl account
Unremitted profit

Deficit on revaluation of assets

UZs

Maturities of assets and Habilities - based on contractua) maturity

2016

Totsl Upto 1 Over 1 Over 3. Over Over 1 Over2 Over3  OverS Above
mouth to3 to 6 6 months to2 tol 05 to 10 10 years
months months to 1 year years years years years
{Rupees in '000)
3,526,232 459,260 3,066,972
59,615 59,615 . -
4,010,103 3,204,812 348,394 306,897 150,000 -
791,862 - 791,562 - . . - .
1,851,745 1,127,295 290,000 135,030 308 - - 236,245 4,140 8,727
47,719 0 43 80 4“4 12,823 12,323 13,083 9,323 -
71,677 19,661 15,505 q.uu.e . 15,169 - - 8,984 1,039 4,001
T 10,358,653 4,870,643 1,445,504 449325 165,521 12,823 12,323 308,312 14,501 3,079,700
13122 [ 113,122 - . -
819,231 171,621 209,197 448,413 -
5,144,438 4,223,338 261,100 660,000 .
1,696 149 299 448 800 - -
[ 241,845 21,280 86,263 6,625 117,977 5,720 3,980
6,330332 4,529,510 556,859 1,115,486 118,777 5,720 3,980 .
4,028,321 u._mnuua : uua_a&m : aaa.ua: 46,744 7,103 WE é 14,501 3,079,700
3,856,160 .
172,478
317
a_eumen




2015

Total Upta 1 Over 1 Over 3 Over . Qverl Over2 Overd Over5 - Above
month to3 o6 . 6 months o2 ol to5 010 10 years
months months to | year years years years years
(Rupess in '000) .
Assets ,
Cash and balances with _
© treasury banks 4,233,157 + 376,997 - - - - - - - 3,856,160
Balances with other banks 127,674 127674 || - . - - . - - -
Lending to financial
institutions 3,741,212 3,111,986 289,554 339,672 - - - - - -
Advances 2,589,396 1,444,892 650,337 130,503 85,104 119,556 61,725 95,728 © 1,185 366
Operating fixed assets 61,442 1,715 3,160 4,740 9,480 13,799 1| 11,126 11,928 5,494 C-
Other asscts 70,485 48,152 12004 | | 4,616 1,146 | - T9 79 158 158 4,003
10,823,366 5,111,416 055,145 479,531 95,730 133,434 72,930 107,814 6,837 3,860,529
Liabilivies
RBills payable , . 6211 6,211 . - - - . - - -
Borrowings . 1,409,814 104,741 209,482 1,095,591 . - - - - : -
Deposits and other accounts 5223318 5,142,518 7510087 700 - 5,000 - - - -
Deferred tax liability . 4,451 ' 58 117 177 354 1,220 984 1,055 486 -
Other liabilities 161,719 50,634 1,130 2,285 103,564 3,979 127 - - -
6,805,513 5,304,162~ 285,829 1,098,753 103,918 10,199 L 1,055 486 -
Net assets 4,017,853 . (192,746) 669,316 - (619,222) (2,188) 123,235 71,819 106,759 6,351 3,860,529
Head Office capital account 3,856,160
Unremitted profit 161,693
4,017,853

oy



4032 Maturities of assets and liabilities - based on expected maturity

: 2016 .
Total Upto 1 Over 1 Overd Over Over 1 Over2 Over 3 OverS .- Abaove
month to3 to b 6 months to2 tod o5 to 10 10 years
months months to 1 year years years - years years
(Rupees in '000)
Assete
Cash and balances with . o
‘treasury banks 3,526,232 459,260 - - - - - - - 3,066,972
Bulances with other banks 59,615 59615 - - - - - - - : -
" Lendiag to finzncial - - - -
institutions 4,010,103 3,204,812 348,394 306,897 150,000
Investments 791,562 - 791,562 - - - - - . - -
Advaneey 1,851,748 1,127,295 290,000 135,030 308 286,245 4,140 8,727
Operating fixed assets : 47,7119 ] 43 80 44 12,823 12,323 13,083 9323 -
Deferred tax assets : - - . - - . - - - : - - -
Other assets 71,677 19,661 15,508 7318 || . 15,169 - = 8,984 1,039 4,001
. : 10,358,653 4,570,643 1,445,504 - 449,328 165,521 12,823 12,323 308,312 14,501 3,079,700
Liabiiities
Bills payable 113,122 113,122 - - )
Borrowings 829,231 171,621 209,197 448413
Deposits and other accounts 5,144,438 4,223 338 261,100 660,000 -
" Deferred tax Habilities 1,696 149 299 448 800 - -
Other iiabilides 241,845 21,280 86,263 | 6,628 | 117,977 | 5,720 | 3,980
- 6,330,332 4,529,510 556,859 1,115,486 118,777 5,720 3,980 .
Net assety 4,028,921 341,134 - B88.645 {666,161) 46,744 7,103 8343 308,312 14,501 3,079,700
Head Office capital acconnt 3,856,160
. Unremitted profit 172,478

- Deficit on revaluation of assets 317y .
) ) , Ehu-
Mz



Assets

Cash and balances with
treasury banks

‘Balances with other banks
Lending to financial

' Operating fixed assets
Other assets

Liabilities

o Bills payable

Deposits and other accounts
Deferred tax liability
Other liabilit

Net assets -

Head Office capital account
Unremitted profit

2015

Total Upta 1 Over Owver3 Over Over 1 Over2 Over3 Overs Above
month 03 106 6 months 2 to3 w5 - 1o 10 10 years
months months to | year years years yoars years
(Rupees in ‘000)
4,233,157 376,997 3,856,160
127,674 127,674 .
3,741,212 3,111,986 289,554 uuo.a..“n - - C - - - -
2,589,396 880,257 791,600 438,255 200,724 119,556 61,725 95,728 1,185 366
61,442 1,715 3,160 4,740 11 9,480 13,799 11,126 11,923 5,494 -
70,485 48,152 12,094 4616 1,146 ™ 79 158 158 4,003
10,823,366 4,546,781 1,096,408 787,283 211,350 133,434 72,930 107,814 6,837 3,860,529
6211 6211 - - -
1,409,814 104,741 209,482 1,095,591 - - -
520918 ]| 4,742,243 147,878 109,866 218331 5,000 - - -
4,451 58 117 177 354 1,220 984 1,055 486
161,719 50,634 1,130 2,285 103,564 3979 127 L | .
6,805,513 4,903,287 , 358,607 1,207,919 322249 10,199 1111 1,055 486
4,017,853 {357,106) 737,801 Quc.ow.mw (110,899) 123,235 71,81% 106,759 §351 3,860,529
1,856,160
161,693
A_o_q_auu



40.4 Operational risk

41.

&
L

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss that may arise due to an event or action resulting from the failure of
technology, processes, infrastructure, personnel and other risks having an operational risk impact. The Branch ensures that

key operational risks are managed in a timely and effective manner through a framework of policies, procedures and tools to
identify, assess, monitor, control and report such risks.

‘The key objectives of operational risk measurement and management inclhude:

- Ensuring continued 's'olvency of the Branch through capital adequacy and enhanced understanding and management of
significant operational risk exposures. '

- Enmningcuﬂoﬁerimpaﬂhmhﬁﬁmdmmughpmwcﬁwmdfmedﬁskmmgmempmﬁces.

- Ensuring senior management attention on significant operationa risk exposure areas and mitigating risks is prioritized,
focused and adequate.

- Ensuring staff is sufficiently incentivized to perform their risk management roles and responsibilities diligently.

-Themmagementofdemchhuﬂ:cresponéibﬂﬁywmperﬁsemddﬁeathemmagentofo;')emtionalrisksand

exposures. Management is also responsible for ensuring that adequate and appropriate policies and procedures are in place
for the identification, assessment, monitoring, control and reporting of operational risks,

Line management needs information to enable it to analyze operational risks, implement mitigating measures and determine
the effectiveness of these mitigating measures. The Branch has implemented various tools to support the line management.

- Compliance and Regulatory Risk Management (Control Self-Assessment {CSA) Framework)

- Risk Assets Management System BRAMPS - OF Framework Approach. All operations incidences are reported to Head
Office through web-based reporting system.

A structured approach has been adopted which helps the line management to identify and assess the risk of non-compliance
with regulatory requirements as well as internal policies. The Branch has implemented a comprehensive Compliance Risk
Management Framework whereby self-assessment is undertaken by cach business / support unit to mitigate the operational
risk.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION

\ o7
W14 MAR 20T

These financial statements were authorized for issue the management of the Branch.

GENERAL

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with format for the financial statements of banks issued by the
State Bank of Pakistan through BSD Circulars No. 4 and 7 dated 17 February 2006 and 20 April 2010 respectively and
related clarifications / modifications. :

. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees, uniess otherwise stated.
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